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The small village of Lunenburg has changed little in size or appearance
since ante-bellum times. The present population is still around forty.
Dominating the wvillage is the imposing court house -- a two-story, brick
temple-form building fronted by a tetrastyle Roman Doriec portico. As
originally built, the court house was only four bays deep, but in 1939
it was extended back two additional bays to accommodate the clerk's
office, The interior of the court house originally was arranged similar
to other court houses of the period, having a two-story courtroom with a
rear gallery. Around 1850, the courtroom was divided inte two floors
and the double flight of stairs leading up to the second floor was placed
under the portico at that time.

To the west of the court house is a colonial style story-and-a-half brick
structure built in 1938 that now houses the county office of the State
licalth Department. This building is one of many similar structures built

at court houses throughout the State through the generosity of Mr. David K, T
Bruce. On the east side of the court house is a large, hipped-roofed frame
house which was once a tavern known as the Lunenburg State Inn. Portions

of this building were built as a residence before the town was laid out.
Directly across the road from the court house is an early-nineteenth-century
frame structure known as the Hotel Gary. Now in poor condition, this
building has at various times accommodated a store, inn, post office, and
residence. In addition to these chief structures the village also contains
a sprinkling of other nineteenth-century buildings and outbuildings.

In its situation on high ground with surrounding cleared lands, the village
présents 4 picturesque sceneé', 'éspeé¢ially from'the ‘'south where tlié court
house and its gleeming white pediment can be clearly seen above‘the smaller
structured ‘¢lustered dbour ifi 7 '
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANGE

Under the authority of an act of the Lunenburg d6unty Court of May, 1782,
the location of the court house was designated to be in a "convenient
place at or near the center of the county". Shortly afterwards, the
exact site was selected apd the plans were approved, but the two-room
frame court house was not completed until 1787. Despite earlier fears that
the geographical center of the county would be remote from the majority
of the inhabitants, the new location of the court gained enough in
importance so that in 1816 the place became an incorporated . village

named Lewiston in honor of Captain Lewis L. Taylor, who fell in the War

of 1812. The new name did not last, however, for the village continues to
be called Lunenburg Court House. Some thirty lots were laid out around
the court house square and were sold off by the town's trustees.

By 1823, it was decided that the 1787 court house should be moved and
replaced by a more substantial building., The citizens of Lunenburg seemed
to be envious of neighboring Charlotte County's. handsome new Roman Revival
court house, for the commissioners appointed to supervise the construction
of a new building were ordered "to advertise in the public papers that,
they will until the 20th day of December meet at Lunenburg Courthouse to
receive proposals for building a new courthouse at this place which
courthouse is proposed to be built after the plan of the new courthouse

in Charlotte County". The new court house was completed by 1827, for in
March of that year the Court was ordered to "hold its sitting therein"

Unfortunately neither the designer nor the builders of the court house
were recorded, but the academic quality of the building's classical
proportions and detail clearly indicates that the de51gner was knowledgeabl
in architecture and was familiar with Thomas Jefferson's Roman Revivalism.
One of the handsomest of Virginia's numerous Roman-style court houses,

the temple-form Lunenburg Court House stands as visible evidence of
Jefferson's influence on the architecture of the State's public buildings.
The architectural quality of the court house is much enhanced by the
malntenance of its historic setting. The conservative growth of the
village of Lunenburg has resulted in the preservation of one of Virginia's
most picturesque court house communities. The court house still visually
dominates the tiny community and the surrounding countryside as it has for
nearly a century and a half. . :
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3.C.8. 74" quadrangle (Scale:1:24000)
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NUKBURG COURT HOUSE PRESERVATION ZONE
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